
 

Development Services Department 
901 NW 66th Avenue, Suite C, Margate, FL 33063 • Phone: (954) 979-6213 

www.margatefl.com • dsd@margatefl.com 

City Commission 
Mayor Arlene R. Schwartz  

Vice Mayor Antonio V. Arserio 
Tommy Ruzzano 

Anthony N. Caggiano  
Joanne Simone 

 
City Manager 

Cale Curtis 

 
City Attorney 

Janette M. Smith, Esq. 

 
City Clerk 

Joseph J. Kavanagh 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

HYBRID VIRTUAL MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83597197579 

MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 
7:00 p.m. 

City of Margate 
City Commission Chambers at City Hall 

 
PRESENT: 
Richard Zucchini, Chair 
Robert Reiner, Vice Chair 
Juli Van Der Meulen, Secretary 
Todd Angier, Board Member 
Gail DeAngelis, Board Member 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 
Janette M. Smith, City Attorney 
Andrea Amigo, Roberts, Bedard, & Tuzzio, PLLC – Outside counsel 
Elizabeth Taschereau, Director of Development Services 
Andrew Pinney, Senior Planner 
Alexia Howald, Associate Planner 
Curt Keyser, DEES Director 
Randy L. Daniel, Assistant DEES Director 
Carleen Steadman, Board Clerk 
Kyle B. Teal, Esq., Buchanan Ingersoll & Rooney PC, Agent for Margate Cares 
for Heroes, LLC 
Tom Hall, Thomas A. Hall, Inc. 
Wes Blackman, CWB Associates, AICP Planner 
Rafael Rivera, Vice President, Quality of Life Corp. 
Miryam Jimenez, President, Quality of Life Corp. 
 
The regular meeting of the Margate Planning and Zoning Board (P&Z) having been 
properly noticed, was called to order at 7:08 p.m. on Tuesday, June 1, 2021, in the 
City Commission Chambers at City Hall, 5790 Margate Boulevard, Margate, FL 
33063. Air Force Staff Sargeant Rachel D. Richter, daughter of Ms. DeAngelis, led 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 
  



Page 2 of 20 
 

1) NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) ID2021-195 
CONSIDERATION OF A REZONING FROM ONE-FAMILY (R-1) AND MULTIPLE 
DWELLING (R-3) DISTRICT TO COMMUNITY FACILITY (CF-1) ZONING 
DISTRICT. 
LOCATION: 603 MELALEUCA DRIVE, MARGATE, FL 33063 
ZONING: ONE-FAMILY (R-1) AND MULTIPLE DWELLING (R-3) DISTRICT 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 1, 2, AND 3, BLOCK 3, HAMMON HEIGHTS 
SECTION 2, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 34, PAGE 46, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF BROWARD COUNTY, 
FLORIDA. 
PETITIONER: ATTORNEY KYLE TEAL, AGENT FOR MARGATE CARE FOR 
HEROES, LLC. 

 
Mr. Zucchini recused himself due to his past vocal support of the project. He stepped away from 
the dais at 7:12 p.m. and Mr. Reiner took over as Chair. 
 
Janette M. Smith, City Attorney, introduced the item and read the Rules of Procedure outlined the 
order of the hearing. She noted the hearing was not Quasi-Judicial but was a public hearing. Ms. 
Smith asked the Board members to identify any ex-parte communication or visits to the site. 
 
Ms. DeAngelis stated she had seen applicant on social media and twice visited the facility. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen stated she had not spoken to Ms. Jimenez in over a year. She noted she 
was originally planning to recuse herself from voting but after several conversations with legal 
counsel she was informed she was not able to do so. 
 
City Attorney Smith confirmed that Ms. Van Der Meulen had requested to abstain, but there was 
no business interest or conflict of interest. Ms. Smith added that Ms. Van Der Meulen had not 
been advocating for the project or for the rezoning itself, and for that reason Ms. Smith advised 
participation, as the law requires a vote unless there is a reason to abstain. 
 
Mr. Reiner stated the project had been around a few years and that he had some minor 
interactions on social media regarding the project, but not the rezoning. 
 
City Attorney Smith noted that a PowerPoint presentation and additional materials had been 
received from the applicant earlier in the day. She stated they were printed for the Board but not 
reviewed by staff. The Board agreed by consensus to allow the materials into the presentation. 
 
Applicant Presentation 
 
Kyle B. Teal, Esq., Agent for Margate Cares for Heroes, LLC, presented the application for a 
Rezoning and provided a brief background. The applicant’s presentation is attached to the 



Page 3 of 20 
 

minutes. He noted the group care facility had been vacant since its construction in 2017, and 
explained the goal was to open as a veterans’ care facility. Mr. Teal introduced the consultants, 
planner Wes Blackman and traffic planner Tom Hall. 
 
Mr. Blackman shared a PowerPoint presentation. He stated the applicant understood the 
community’s concern regarding other uses allowable within CF-1 zoning and shared an 
affidavit/covenant to restrict the use of the property to long-term care facilities such as assisted 
living facility, skilled nursing facilities, and/or physical rehabilitation. He noted the document could 
be amended but would follow the land in case of sale. 
 
Mr. Blackman continued to provide a history of the item, explaining staff had recommended 
approval of a variance request to build the facility on December 11, 2014. He stated at that time, 
it was a use permitted within the R-3 multi-family zoning district. Continuing, he shared Resolution 
15-010, a Resolution of the City Commission, approving with conditions a Special Exception Use 
to permit a group care facility on the property subject to the findings of the Development Review 
Committee (DRC). Mr. Blackman reviewed the findings of the DRC at that time, as follows: 
 

a. The use is compatible with the indigenous environment and with properties in the 
neighborhood, as outlined in the Margate Comprehensive Plan. 

b. There are no substantial detrimental effects of the proposal on property values in the 
neighborhood. 

c. There are no substantial detrimental effects with the use on living or working conditions in 
the neighborhood. 

d. There is adequate ingress and egress to the development, with particular reference to 
automotive and pedestrian safety, control of automotive traffic, provision of services and 
servicing of utilities and reuse (sic) collection, and access in the case of fire, catastrophe, 
or emergency. 

e. There is adequate off-street parking in relation to buildings, and adequate internal traffic 
patterns with particular reference to automotive and pedestrian traffic safety, traffic flow 
and control, access in case of fire or emergencies, and screening and buffering. 

f. There is acceptable orientation, location, size, and features of buildings, and appearance 
and harmony of the buildings with nearby development and land uses. 

g. There is sufficiency of setbacks, buffers, and general amenities to preserve internal and 
external harmony and compatibility with uses inside and outside the development and to 
control adverse effects of site generated noise, lights, fumes, and other nuisances. 

h. There is adequate stormwater management with attention to the necessity of on-site 
retention to alleviate flooding and ground water pollution without compromising the 
aesthetics and maintainability of landscaping. 

i. There is adequate landscaping with an emphasis on the preservation of existing trees, the 
use of native species, and the use of berming along street perimeters. 

j. There is compliance with the applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the Margate 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 



Page 4 of 20 
 

Mr. Blackman showed an affidavit signed by the applicant on July 13, 2015, stipulating the use 
as a group care facility. He reviewed the services to be available, explaining these services were 
allowable in the CF-1 district and not permittable in other districts, including: 
 

• State-of-the-art nursing care available 24 hours a day 
• Wound care management 
• Pain management 
• Consultation services 
• Rehabilitation services 
• Pharmaceutical services 
• Wheelchair-accessible transportation 
• Hospice care 
• Multilingual staff 
• On-site X-rays 
• IV medication 

 
Mr. Blackman stated these are the types of services required by returning veterans. He shared 
definitions from the business plan submitted in 2015, Change of Occupancy Permits filed through 
the City of Margate in April 2016 during the construction of the project, and the Certificate of 
Occupancy issued on March 30, 2017. Continuing, Mr. Blackman shared the site plan, dated 
October 19, 2015. He stated the plan was as the building sits today, with the exception of the 
western lot, which was purchased in 2019. He reviewed the City of Margate Fire Department 
Assessment, which showed the building as a nursing home measuring 8,885 square feet and 
called for an assessment totaling $6,130.65 per year for 2017 through 2021. 
 
Continuing, Mr. Blackman stated the application for this rezoning had been submitted in May 
2020, and the applicant had undergone a parallel process with a July 21, 2020, Public Hearing 
for a Reasonable Accommodation Request and an October 13, 2020 DRC Meeting regarding the 
Rezoning Request. He noted both were denied, and the applicant was encouraged to seek 
rezoning. He reviewed the City of Margate Code Article XI. Community Facility CF-1 District: 
 

Section 11.2 – Purpose of district. 
The community facility district is intended to provide for the orderly development of those 
educational, cultural, religious, health care, recreational, and governmental facilities 
required to meet the needs of the community in which they are located. 

 
Mr. Blackman noted “long-term care facilities” was listed as a permitted use in Section 11.3 and 
reviewed the language of Section 31-36(b)(2) of the City Code: 
 

Section 31-36 – Determinations required prior to a change in zoning. 
(b)(2) A change in zoning on platted land which need not be replatted prior to issuance of 
a building permit shall be permitted after a determination has been made by the City 
Commission that services are available to serve the development permitted in the zoning 
district which is being petitioned. A determination that services are available shall be made 



Page 5 of 20 
 

when the City Commission approves a report submitted by the Development Review 
Committee which indicates the conditions contained in Section 31-35 of this article have 
been met. 

 
Mr. Blackman reviewed the DRC memorandum dated October 13, 2020, noting it was included in 
the backup materials for this meeting. He stated the 18-page memorandum was presented to the 
applicant on the date of the DRC meeting as dated, and not given in advance to allow preparation 
time for a response. He explained the function of the DRC and discussed the individual comments 
from the memorandum. 
 
In response to a comment included from the Fire Department showing a fire alarm, sprinkler, and 
backup generator were required, Mr. Blackman shared a letter dated May 30, 2021 from James 
Philip Drago, Registered Architect, stating the application did not require a generator. Mr. 
Blackman discussed the availability of potable water service for the proposed development, along 
with wastewater treatment and disposal services. He noted the requirement to address traffic 
impacts of the project, and stated Tom Hall was present to share a report. He stated Mr. Hall had 
worked with City staff since October to refine the study to meet requirements. Mr. Blackman 
discussed Section 31-37(b) of the City Code, noting the use of the words “if” and “may” instead 
of “shall”: 
 

Section 31-37 – Development presumed to have maximum impact permitted; use of site 
plan to assess maximum impact. 
(b) If a site plan is presented when a proposed plat, subdivision resurvey or rezoning 
application is submitted, it may be used as the basis to assess the maximum impact of 
development. In the event that an application for a building permit is submitted which, in 
the opinion of the building official, provides more intensive uses than those indicated on 
the site plan or substantially deviates from the site plan, the application shall be referred 
to the Development Review Committee for assessment. 

 
Tom Hall reviewed the traffic analysis for the project, including the associated definitions and 
history of the drafts created. He stated the trip generation analysis utilized data the Institute of 
Traffic Engineers, but City staff had objected to the methodology and assumptions, so revisions 
had been required. Mr. Hall explained the traffic statement before the Board was the fourth 
iteration of the statement. 
 
Mr. Hall showed tables explaining the projected daily trip generation for the site, including morning 
and evening peak hour trip generation by employees. He stated the increase between the current 
use and proposed use was projected at an average of five (5) trips per 24-hour period, with an 
additional 11 trips in the peak hour. 
 
Mr. Blackman returned to his presentation. He discussed outstanding staff comments and the 
applicant’s responses, including water management, public sidewalks, and the water distribution 
system. Mr. Blackman stated the applicant agrees to pay all water connection and impact fees 
based on the number of beds at the facility. 



Page 6 of 20 
 

Mr. Blackman reviewed the map of boundary survey to explain the applicant’s response to the 
Development Services comment on setbacks included in the DRC report. He discussed parking, 
sidewalks, landscaping, and vehicle gates. He highlighted that in Development Services comment 
seven (7), it was noted that the Board of Adjustments granted variance BA-12-2015 on April 7, 
2015 which allowed the property owner to install vehicle gates without the required vehicle 
reservoir areas and a later comment referenced variance BA-13-2015, which allowed a fence to 
be installed in the front yard. Continuing to review the comments in the DRC report, Mr. Blackman 
responded to Development Services comment 13 by stating that in 2015, the City Commission 
had found the plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. In response to comment 14, he 
stated the applicant would agree to a covenant of the City’s liking which excluded hospitals. 
 
Chair Reiner called for a recess at 8:12 p.m. 
 
Chair Reiner called the meeting back to order at 8:22 p.m. 
 
Staff Presentation 
 
Andrew Pinney, Senior Planner, presented the rezoning applicant on behalf of staff. The staff 
presentation is attached to the minutes. He opened with an explanation of the subject parcel, 
including the zoning categories of the surrounding properties, photos of the property, and the 
survey. He explained that lots one (1) and two (2) of the subject property were zoned R-3, and lot 
one (1), which was acquired in 2019 to become part of the site, was zoned R-1. He noted the 
neighboring properties were all zoned residential. 
 
Mr. Pinney reviewed the permitted uses for R-1, One (1) Family Dwelling District, including: 
 

• Single-family dwelling 
• Recreational buildings/facilities/playgrounds (City) 
• Recreational/social centers 
• Church/synagogue/religious institution 
• Water/sewer plants and utility infrastructure 
• Accessory uses 
• Home occupation 
• Commercial Residential Home, Type 1 
• Recovery Residence 

 
Mr. Pinney explained that Commercial Residential Home, Type 1 referred to homes of six (6) or 
fewer residents as licensed by various State agencies. He discussed the definition and limits on 
Recovery Residences. Mr. Pinney reviewed the permitted uses for R-3, Multiple Dwelling District, 
including: 
 

• Single-family dwelling 
• Two-family dwelling 
• Multiple family dwelling (7-16 units per acre) 



Page 7 of 20 
 

• Recreational buildings/facilities/playgrounds (City) 
• Recreational/social centers 
• Church/synagogue/religious institution 
• Water/sewer plants and utility infrastructure 
• Accessory uses 
• Home occupation 
• Commercial Residential Home, Type 1 or 2 
• Recovery Residence 

 
Mr. Pinney explained a Commercial Residential Home, Type 2 services seven (7) to 14 clients. 
He reviewed the permitted uses for CF-1 Community Facility District, including: 
 

• Uses By Right 
o House of worship and school on the same lot 
o Hospitals, detoxification facilities, and long-term care facilities 
o Municipal buildings, fire stations, playgrounds, etc. 
o Accessory uses 

• Special Exception Uses 
o Public or private elementary, middle, or high school 
o Public or private postsecondary education facility 

 
Mr. Pinney outlined the definitions of Use by Right and Special Exception Use. He explained 
during the original build-out, the property being discussed was built under the Institutional-2 (I-2) 
occupancy group, a category of the Florida Building Code (as in place in 2014) which governs 
uses to include foster care facilities, detoxification facilities, hospitals, nursing homes, and 
psychiatric hospitals. Continuing, Mr. Pinney reviewed the rezoning application. He stated under 
the question on the application asking for a description of the proposal, the applicant had written: 
 

Change of zoning to CF-1 to allow Medical Rights in a 1-2 Building. This property was 
converted from a 10-unit apartment building to a Long Term Care Facility. Permit 15-
00001248 4/26/16, CO 3/30/2017. 

 
Mr. Pinney discussed the City of Margate’s rezoning process, as identified in Chapter 31 of the 
City Code. He explained the steps, including review by the DRC, Planning and Zoning Board, and 
City Commission. Mr. Pinney reviewed the language of Section 31-36(b)(2) of the City Code: 
 

Section 31-36 – Determinations required prior to a change in zoning. 
(b)(2) A change in zoning on platted land which need not be replatted prior to issuance of 
a building permit shall be permitted after a determination has been made by the City 
Commission that services are available to serve the development permitted in the zoning 
district which is being petitioned. A determination that services are available shall be made 
when the City Commission approves a report submitted by the Development Review 
Committee which indicates the conditions contained in Section 31-35 of this article have 
been met. 



Page 8 of 20 
 

Section 31-35 – Determinations required prior to approval of a development permit. 
“A determination that adequate services will be available to serve the needs of the 
proposed development shall be made when the following conditions are met.” 

 
Section 31-37 – Development presumed to have maximum impact permitted; use of site 
plan to assess maximum impact. 

• “For the purpose of implementing sections 31-34, 31-35, and 31-36, a proposed 
development shall be presumed to have the maximum impact permitted under 
applicable land development regulations such as zoning regulations and the land 
use element of the Margate Comprehensive Plan.” 

• “If a site plan is presented when a proposed plat, subdivision resurvey or rezoning 
application is submitted, it may be used as the basis to assess the maximum 
impact of the development.” 

 
Mr. Pinney explained these sections provided a road map for staff to follow in determining whether 
to recommend a rezoning application for approval. He clarified comments made by the applicant, 
explaining the site plan submittal was not received by the DRC. He stated as such, staff was 
looking at the application as having the maximum impact permitted. Mr. Pinney reviewed the DRC 
findings from the October 13, 2020 meeting, including: 
 

• DEES unable to make specific findings pertaining to surface water and traffic 
• Developmental Services found several nonconformities with Code and inconsistencies 

with the Comprehensive Plan 
• Fire Department required specific improvements 
• Building Official required building permit for current I-2 requirements 
• DRC recommended denial 

 
Mr. Pinney stated as of today, there had been a fourth traffic statement submitted, but the findings 
did not address the maximum impact, which was an ongoing point of contention. He argued the 
consultant had broken it down to focus on per hour, but really the findings were nearly four (4) 
times the number of trips per day. Mr. Pinney noted the DRC findings were included in the backup, 
and staff members were present to respond to any questions. He explained staff recommended 
denial of the application. 
 
Andrea Amigo, Roberts, Bedard, & Tuzzio, PLLC, outside counsel, added additional clarification. 
She explained the issues raised by the applicant during their discussion of 2015 were in reference 
to a prior application for Special Exception use. She stated those issues were already litigated in 
this matter in 2017, which were for an independent living facility. Ms. Amigo explained the Board 
was hearing a new application at this time for rezoning. 
 
Board Discussion 
 
Mr. Angier stated Mr. Blackman had referenced the DRC comments included in Resolution 15-
010, specifically line G, setbacks, buffers, and general amenities, showing they were all sufficient 



Page 9 of 20 
 

at that time, but in the 2020 DRC report they were shown as not adequate. He noted the same 
was true for line J, compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. He asked staff to explain the 
change, if the building and property were previously in compliance. 
 
Mr. Pinney responded that in 2015 the applicant had submitted a different application, which 
resulted in a different process. He stated at that time there was no site plan review, as it was a 
Special Exception for a residential group care facility which was being considered. He added that 
this application was opening the door to all uses of CF-1, so following that process. 
 
Mr. Angier clarified that the project met the set of standards required of the original application 
but did not meet the different set of standards for this application. He stated the assertion by the 
applicant’s agent that the application being in compliance then should mean it was in compliance 
now did not work due to the difference in situations. Mr. Angier stated a comment was made that 
there would be no impact on property values. He asked who makes that determination. 
 
Mr. Pinney explained the comment had been made by Mr. Blackman in reference to the 2015 
review of the Special Exception application. He reiterated that it was a different application and a 
different set of criteria. 
 
Mr. Angier expressed concern that even if allowed within residential districts, when someone buys 
a home, they are not signing up to have a group home as a neighbor. He asserted there would 
be times when a prospective buyer might be turned off by the neighboring facility and noted he 
did not believe anyone could say there would be no impact on property values. He stated he 
would like to know how the residents feel about the facility in their neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Angier stated the site plan showed 22 parking spaces. He asked Mr. Pinney to comment on 
whether the assumptions regarding how many of the 49 employees would be on site at any given 
time were reasonable. 
 
Mr. Pinney explained staff was bound by the Code. He read the provision for parking most directly 
related, for convalescent homes and nursing homes, which would require one (1) parking space 
for each five beds and one (1) parking space for each employee. 
Mr. Angier addressed the traffic issue, noting that thanks to the continued efforts of Randy Daniel, 
Assistant DEES Director, the fourth iteration of the traffic study seemed to be an improvement. 
 
Randy Daniel, Assistant DEES Director, explained the applicant had responded to some of his 
comments, but there were comments outstanding. He discussed the maximum impact of CF-1 
development on the property and stated in his opinion it had still not been addressed in the traffic 
analysis. He stated his concern was that a four (4) story building could be built on the lot and a 
hospital was consistent with CF-1 zoning, for example. 
 
Mr. Angier stated that he understood staff was looking at the worst-case scenario and the 
applicant was looking at it from the standpoint of their current plans. He stated Mr. Blackman had 
suggested an affidavit restricting the use and asked if that was a possibility. 



Page 10 of 20 
 

Mr. Hall responded that the analysis did not include analysis of a four (4) story building was 
because the client had stated they were preparing a covenant which would limit the building size 
to what is currently in place. He noted if there were not covenant, Mr. Daniel would be right. 
 
Mr. Angier asked if the covenant had been presented in writing. 
 
Mr. Hall stated the covenant had been proposed as a condition of approval. 
 
Mr. Teal pointed the Board to page three (3) of his PowerPoint presentation for proposed wording 
of the covenant, and stated the applicant was open to revisions by staff. 
 
Ms. Amigo responded that the issue with this restrictive covenant, which Mr. Angier pointed out 
was not something that had been signed or approved, was that it could conflict with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) or the Fair Housing Act. 
 
Mr. Teal argued a different position was taken in court, and stated a voluntary covenant signed 
by the applicant would be enforceable. He added that he had case law to share with the City 
Attorney and noted that the covenant was not targeting any specific type of patient or protected 
group but was focused on excluded use. 
 
Ms. Amigo stated that she would disagree with Mr. Teal’s interpretation. She asserted that 
disallowing a particular use like a hospital could potentially run afoul of the ADA if a subsequent 
property owner wanted to maintain a different use. 
 
Mr. Angier expressed concern that the issues brought up at the October 2020 DRC were not 
addressed until this meeting. He stated his personal opinion was that there had been time to put 
together rebuttals and come back with some sort of written compromise. Mr. Angier stated that 
he did not think the applicant was taking their responsibilities to work with City staff seriously. He 
commented on the backup generator discussion, and stated it was his understanding that they 
were required in nursing homes following issues with a hurricane. 
 
Curt Keyser, DEES Director, stated the covenant had not been presented prior to this meeting, 
so staff had not had a chance to review or consider. He noted that in a cursory review, it appeared 
as though the proposed covenant would run with the land if the building were ever sold but would 
not kick in if the building remained the property of the applicant. 
 
City Attorney Smith stated she and Mr. Teal had had multiple conversations about the covenant, 
as well as reviewing the case law submitted and speaking with several land use attorneys on the 
issue. She asserted the enforcement of such a covenant would be very difficult, in addition to 
potential Federal concerns. 
 
Discussion continued regarding the covenant’s language and enforceability. 
 



Page 11 of 20 
 

Mr. Teal argued the applicant agreed the applicant also did not think a four (4) story private 
hospital belonged on the land, and stated they were willing to work on the language. He stated 
efforts had been made to try to find common ground with the City. He addressed the generator 
requirement and asked Mr. Hall and Mr. Blackman to respond to issues raised during the staff 
presentation. 
 
David Scholl, Fire Code Official, explained the generator comment. He stated it was a Broward 
County requirement adopted January 9, 2020. He explained the Uniform Generator Code from 
the Fire Code and read the language for the record. 
 
Mr. Teal stated that what he thought was being missed in the discussion was that any sort of use, 
even if the rezoning were to be granted, would require administrative approval. He explained if it 
did not comply at that time, the use would not be approved. Mr. Teal stated the property was 
located near a major artery in the City and asked that Mr. Blackman respond to zoning concerns. 
 
Mr. Blackman pointed out the future land use for area, explaining the broad swath of the area was 
transit oriented. He stated it was a broad mixed-use designation with a time horizon of perhaps 
20 years. He argued the area’s use was in flux and the project was transitional. Mr. Blackman 
stated the neighboring land was zoned R-3 and there was a well-established institutional use 
across the street, so he would disagree with staff on the compatibility. Continuing, Mr. Blackman 
stated setbacks increase an additional five (5) feet above the second floor, so along with additional 
needs for parking, the space self-regulates in terms of the sort of uses that would find the property 
appropriate for development. He asserted a hospital or other institutional use would also require 
a lot of back office, utility, elevators, and storage. 
 
Mr. Blackman addressed the discussion related to the generator, stating the applicant’s team had 
thought it might be an environmental issue with the neighborhood. He noted they were willing to 
comply but had offered the alternative as a way to be a better neighbor. 
 
Ms. DeAngelis stated her interpretation was different from that of Mr. Angier. She asserted she 
was in favor of rezoning the property and noted the location one (1) block from Atlantic Boulevard 
and one (1) block from State Road 7 lends itself to change the property to CF-1. Ms. DeAngelis 
stated she had read the documentation and thought it was somewhat confrontational. She said 
she believed a compromise could be reached to placate both staff and the applicant. 
 
Ms. DeAngelis asserted that she would like to see the project move forward and be productive. 
She stated she did not see the traffic as an issue, the sidewalk was insignificant as there were no 
other sidewalks in the area, and she did not believe the trips per day for the type of facility. She 
stated that maximizing the property with four (4) stories might be an issue in 20 years, but the 
applicant had put in time and money while demonstrating good faith regarding the property. She 
added the property was nice looking and added to the neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen stated she was considering what she would think if it was moving into her 
neighborhood and said the term medical services was an issue because according to the ADA, 



Page 12 of 20 
 

medical services could not be further clarified. She explained that she came from a military family 
and was all for helping veterans but would not be for taking medical services and putting them 
into a residential neighborhood. She stated she thought it would set a precedent for all South 
Florida if they took a residential neighborhood and put in medical services. Ms Van Der Meulen 
acknowledged the applicant had spent money, blood, sweat, and tears to try to help and do 
something for people, but she was not clear it was good for the area. 
 
Mr. Reiner stated he thought there was a misconception regarding the difference between a 
recovery home and a home care facility. He agreed with what Ms. Van Der Meuelen regarding 
the money that had gone into the facility, and stated it was beautiful. He asserted that after 
spending millions of dollars to create a home care facility, it would make no business sense to 
convert it to a recovery home. Mr. Reiner stated the applicant was in the business of helping 
veterans and from what he was hearing, was also willing to be accommodating. He asked if there 
would be any lifesaving equipment in the facility that would run off of electric. 
 
Mr. Teal responded his understanding was that there would not be that type of equipment, as it 
was not an acute facility. He stated the facility was a hybrid between residential and medical and 
would not provide the intensity of care of a hospital. 
 
Mr. Reiner asked if there would be monitoring systems and computer systems which needed to 
work off electric to maintain records. 
 
Mr. Teal stated that was not the particular business plan, as counseling and medication would be 
more the type of care provided rather than life-supporting equipment or anything of that nature. 
He added that his understanding of the County regulation was that it was applicable to nursing 
homes, but if the City thought of it that way, the applicant would be collaborative. 
 
Mr. Reiner stated he thought the applicant had been more than accommodating and shown they 
really wanted to work with the City to do this project. 
 
Mr. Blackman asked that the City zoning map be shown for discussion. He pointed to the CF-1 
zoning district throughout the City and stated it was typically surrounded by R-1 zoning, so this 
was not an unusual circumstance. Mr. Blackman noted the had not done a deep dive into all of 
the areas, but it was not unheard of for CF-1 to coexist with single-family residential. 
 
City Attorney Smith asked for clarification on the definition of subacute as referenced in the 
application and presentation. 
 
Mr. Teal responded that he was not a medical professional, but his understanding was that a 
subacute patient was between acute and chronic, able to care for themselves while staying in 
treatment facility for PTSD treatment. He noted the treatment would include residency for up to 
90 days. He explained differences between this type of supportive facility and a hospital or medical 
care facility. 
 



Page 13 of 20 
 

City Attorney Smith read a definition of subacute from the internet, noting it included therapy of 
less than three (3) hours per day. She asked if the applicant would agree with the definition. 
 
Mr. Teal stated he would agree with the characterization, that it was for less frequent and less 
intense forms of services. 
 
Mr. Reiner opened a public hearing on the item. 
 
Elsa Sanchez, 6930 NW 15th Street, stated she had been following the project for a long time, but 
there were a few items she was still concerned with. She asserted there had been so many 
changes over time that she did not trust the applicant’s future plans for the location. She noted 
the name Margate Cares for Heroes sounded beautiful and warm and poetic, but the residents in 
the area needed assurances on who would be served. She stated she agreed there was a need 
but thought it should be done in the proper area. 
 
Alexia Howald, Associate Planner, reviewed the instructions for providing public comment 
virtually. 
 
Guy Drab, 5120 SW 158th Avenue, Miramar, stated he was a 1970 West Point Graduate and 
former Airborne Ranger in the Army, Chaplain, and Pastor, shared his experience working with 
suicide intervention programs and PTSD. He stated he knew there was a lot of concern from 
neighbors as to the type of people who would be in their communities, but this was an opportunity 
for Margate to go beyond “thank you for your service.” He encouraged the Board to take 
advantage of the opportunity. 
 
Lauren Beracha, 6950 NW 14th Place, explained that she had family members that were veterans, 
including a nephew with PTSD who ended up killing himself. She noted despite her vested 
interest, the residents pay Margate’s staff and counsel to make recommendations, and their 
expert opinions should be followed. She added that the applicant spending a lot of money was 
not Margate’s problem. She stated the facility was needed, but not in the back yard of residential 
neighborhoods. 
 
Mr. Teal noted that Rafael Rivera, Vice President, Quality of Life Corporation, had wanted to 
provide public comment. Mr. Rivera no longer appeared on the call and was unable to speak. 
 
Lisa Martz, 1015 Spanish River Road, Boca Raton, spoke as a representative of Amen Clinics. 
She explained the functional brain scan service that would be offered to all residents in the facility 
in order to offer effective and accurate treatment. She stated she understood the stereotypes and 
not wanting it in your neighborhood, but there were all kinds of things in a neighborhood that 
would be more disruptive. 
 
Bill Bush, 6761 NW 20th Street, stated that in 2017 his family had looked at a house near this 
facility, and had done research on the property values in the area. He asserted the project had 
changed multiple times and the applicant was about business, not people. 



Page 14 of 20 
 

Jerry Horta, 8964 New Hope Court, Royal Palm Beach, stated he was calling to try to open the 
hearts of the staff and Board regarding this issue. He discussed the need for veterans’ services 
in the community, and stated the location was perfect to create a comfortable environment. He 
asked the Board to consider approval and asserted that whatever business was planned for the 
location, it had always been about helping people. 
 
Roxana Casines, 3141 Portofino Point, Coconut Creek, explained she was a real estate 
consultant and had worked with similar companies in the past. She stated there would be many 
residents in Margate who would be happy to have a facility that offered the types of services 
proposed in the community. 
 
Mr. Reiner closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Angier stated there was no one there who was anti-helping veterans. He said what bothered 
him about some of the comments was that if he did not vote for this, then he was anti-veteran. He 
asserted his vote was going to be no because the applicant had not gone through the process 
properly for this zoning to be changed. He added that he was not voting against veterans, he was 
voting against people who had not worked the process the way they were supposed to. 
 
Mr. Angier stated there was a good reason staff had voted to deny, because so many of the things 
in the plan did not line up the way they are supposed to in order to have the zoning change. 
Ms. DeAngelis asked counsel if it would be appropriate to vote to table the matter, as she felt the 
Board did not have enough information to move forward, especially with the information which 
had been presented at the last moment. She stated she thought this was a project that should be 
considered for approval but wanted time to review the packet. 
 
City Attorney Smith asked Mr. Teal to comment on the timeline of the project. She advised the 
motion to table would go to the City Commission, who would make the final decision in a Quasi-
Judicial hearing on the matter. 
 
Mr. Teal stated they would rather have the item tabled than have a recommendation of denial. He 
noted that if there was additional qualification or information needed, the applicant wanted to 
provide it. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen asked if the Board could get more information about the patient that would 
be coming into the facility. She stated she had heard during testimony they do not leave the facility 
and asked why that would be. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the voluntary nature of the facility. 
 
Mr. Reiner stated he heard Mr. Angier’s argument that the application should be properly done 
and then presented to the Board, but suggested approval with conditions to meet, within reason, 
the City’s recommendations in order to proceed. 
 



Page 15 of 20 
 

Mr. Pinney asked that if the Board moved forward with conditions, they be specific about what the 
conditions were. He stated some of the issues, such as the buffers, would require redevelopment 
of the property. He used the example of setbacks on the north property line, noting moving from 
the 15-foot setback to the required 40-foot would mean cutting 25 feet off the building. 
 
Mr. Rivera responded to Ms. Van Der Meulen’s previous question. He stated this would be a 
counseling facility, not a facility that would be taking people in from the court system. He noted 
he had been opening centers like this throughout the country, utilizing evidence-based practices 
to treat veterans and first responders. He noted there may be couples coming to work through 
issues, and active-duty personnel on referral from military installations. Mr. Rivera stated at the 
end of the day the issue was a lack of psychological treatment for people with PTSD and the 
number of people coming back with needs. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen stated she understood the applicant had made a large investment in the 
property and noted what she did not understand was why the money was spent to build the facility 
before it was approved. 
 
Mr. Reiner argued the construction had been approved. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen responded that an assisted living facility was approved, but the medical 
facility they were looking at was not. She reiterated that she did not understand why all that money 
was spent. 
 
Mr. Teal provided a brief history of the project and stated the applicant’s permits were originally 
approved by the City of Margate for an assisted living facility. He asserted the applicant’s position 
was that also included a skilled nursing facility, but the City had a different position on that. Mr. 
Teal explained the permits were approved for I-2 facility, which means it was medical in nature 
and could provide medical services at a high nature. He stated the City Code was subsequently 
changed in 2017, which eliminated the category under which the approval was granted, group 
care facility, and made a number of other subsequent changes which limited uses for R3 zoned 
properties. 
 
Continuing, Mr. Teal explained the building was renovated and constructed under the old Code, 
but under today’s Code that could only be accomplished if the applicant had gotten a change in 
zoning to CF1 first. He stated the request at this time was to update the zoning designation to 
match the physical structure which had been constructed. 
 
Elizabeth Taschereau, Director of Development Services reminded the Board that as an 
advisory body, the next step for the application would be the City Commission. 
 
Mr. Reiner passed the gavel to Ms. Van Der Meulen to make a motion to approve the application 
with special conditions. City Attorney Smith and Mr. Pinney assisted in clarifying the language of 
the motion. The motion died for lack of a second. 
 



Page 16 of 20 
 

Mr. Reiner asked what accommodations the City was willing to make. He stated there was the 
setbacks, landscaping, sidewalks, generator, restrictions to the number of floors, and parking. He 
asserted that with each item that came up, the applicant was willing to make accommodations. 
 
Mr. Pinney stated that adjusting the setbacks, the parking, and buffer wall would be practically 
redeveloping the site, so he wanted to make clear what was being requested. 
 
Mr. Angier stated he understood setbacks were going to be impossible. He noted his concern was 
that there were several things staff has asked for within the report which had not been done. He 
stated as Mr. Reiner had said, the applicant had expressed a willingness to meet certain 
requirements but had not done so yet. 
 
Mr. Pinney responded that he was not sure negotiation was appropriate at a staff level. He 
explained the report created by the DRC was to identify the deficiencies in the property. 
 
Ms. Taschereau added that each department had provided their list of recommendations during 
the DRC process. 
 
Mr. Angier clarified staff had recommended denial based on a set of circumstances they had 
outlined in the report. He stated the things which qualified the applicant for denial needed to be 
addressed so staff could get to the point where they recommended approval. 
 
Ms. Taschereau stated staff would not be able to do that. 
 
Mr. Angier responded that by staff standards, this project could never be approved. 
 
Ms. Taschereau stated staff had recommended denial. She noted that based on everything they 
had heard from staff and the applicant, the Board would have to make their best choice. 
 
Mr. Angier asked how the Board could come up with a plan to help the applicant move forward. 
 
Mr. Pinney explained it was a zoning issue. 
 
Mr. Angier noted the setbacks were the first issue. He stated it was impossible to move a building 
one (1) way or another and asked if the option was to go to the Board of Adjustments and ask for 
a variance on the setback. Mr. Angier suggested staff and the applicant sit down and come to a 
compromise, such as on the parking. He stated there had to be some flexibility. He asserted 
everyone knew all 49 employees were not going to be on site at the same time, so there had to 
be a commonsense answer. 
 
Ms. Taschereau stated based on the facts staff had given the Board, which were based on their 
interpretation of the zoning, Codes, and use, the Board had to make a decision for what they 
believe to be the right thing. She explained now that the Board had heard the staff 



Page 17 of 20 
 

recommendation and the applicant’s side, the Board’s position was to act as an advisory panel to 
the City Commission. 
 
Chair Reiner called for a recess at 10:38 p.m. 
 
Chair Reiner called the meeting back to order at 10:46 p.m. 
 
Mr. Reiner passed the gavel to Ms. Van Der Meulen to make a motion. 
 
Mr. Reiner made the following motion, seconded by Ms. DeAngelis: 

 
MOTION: TO APPROVE THE ZONING CHANGE 

 
ROLL CALL: Mr. Angier – Yes, Ms. DeAngelis – Yes; Mr. Reiner – Yes, Ms. Van Der 

Meulen – No. The motion passed with a 3-1 vote. Mr. Zucchini did not vote. 
 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Teal thanked the Board for their time and for voting for a much-needed step forward. 
 
Mr. Zucchini congratulated the Board for the consideration they had given the issue. He stated he 
was proud of the way they had handled it. 
 
Mr. Angier stated he was a little disappointed with the way the discussion had gone. He said he 
felt like the applicant had not done what they were supposed to with the City, and he did not like 
an answer that there was nothing that could be done. He stated they had to find a way, and he 
was very frustrated with what had taken place. 
 
Mr. Angier added that he was happy to be back on the Board and looked forward to the 
discussions. He stated he had questions regarding the May meeting being canceled without input 
from the Chair, and noted he felt that was wrong. He outlined the process which had taken place 
during his tenure as Chair when there was no business before the Board, where it was ultimately 
the decision of the Chair. 
 
Ms. DeAngelis stated she was glad an agreement had been made tonight, and noted she thought 
it was a positive project for the area. She stated based on the location and the surrounding 
properties, she thought it was the right decision. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen commented that she felt coming to the meeting tonight and being a part of 
this discussion was extremely important for her. She stated her dad had passed away this 
morning, and she thought showing up which she learned she was not able to abstain was an 
opportunity to get more questions answered. Ms. Van Der Meulen added that the fact this was 
medical services made her nervous, and personally she thought they were opening a can of 



Page 18 of 20 
 

worms. She stated the community needed some clarity on what was going to be there and what 
would be going on with the medical uses. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen stated she did not care about the setbacks, plants, or other issues, what she 
cared about was the medical uses and the impact on other areas in the future. 
 
Mr. Reiner stated the question for him was who we are if we do not have compassion and trust 
for others, especially those who had put their lives on the line for us and are now struggling 
because of it. He asserted it was all about the facility for him and what could be done for them. 
 
Mr. Zucchini asserted the City needed to encourage commercial development. He stated 
everyone talks about property taxes going up, but the City operates on a tight budget and 50 
percent of the residences pay $400 or less. He noted commercial developers would see situations 
like this and say they wanted to stay away from Margate and avoid issues. Mr. Zucchini stated 
the matter could be rewritten as a Shakespearean tragedy, as it was a tragic situation on both 
sides. He stated what was missed during the meeting was the perspective of history, which is 
necessary to understand the issue dating back to January 2015. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated the building was applied for as a group care facility. He stated the plans were 
for a medical level building and were signed off on by every department head in the City, including 
Mr. Pinney. He noted he had a copy of the original application. 
 
Continuing, Mr. Zucchini explained he was on the Planning and Zoning Board at that time, and 
said he is passionate about this subject because he and Mr. Angier were a party to creating the 
problem while sitting on the Board. He stated the elimination of the group care facility category 
happened at his first meeting on the Board, and it had been approved without asking if the zoning 
change would affect anyone in process. He added that he would forever hold himself responsible 
for not asking the question. Mr. Zucchini stated the information was also not volunteered, and that 
elimination of group care facilities from the R3 was done without that consideration when it should 
not have been. He noted it was presented as housekeeping at that time. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated at that time, a group care facility acted as an all-encompassing subacute care 
facility, including what the applicant wants to do at this time with veterans. He asserted the 
applicant was approved in January 2015 for a group care facility, however there had been a 
number of issues since. Mr. Zucchini stated he was not saying there were not mistakes made on 
the side of the applicant. He noted it was not about whether or not the applicant was liked. 
 
Mr. Zucchini asserted the approval in January 2015 allowed the applicant to do what they are 
looking to do now with veteran care. He stated his head explodes when he hears people say, “I 
support veterans, but…”, because the but does not apply. He noted some people had said it 
should not be in residential neighborhoods, but before April 2017, the code said a group care 
facility must be and should be in a residential district to allow the residents to assimilate back into 
society. He stated the Code back then had compassion, and it had since been lost. 
 



Page 19 of 20 
 

Continuing, Mr. Zucchini stated the City of Margate holds responsibility for the issues just as the 
applicant does. He asserted the applicant was incentivized to put money into the building, and 
Development Services had signed the building permit and plans. He stated the City Code requires 
denying buildings which do not meet the zoning. Mr. Zucchini stated it took two (2) years to finish 
the building, and a lot happened in those two (2) years. He said after the construction of the 
building, the City did not provide a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), so the applicant had to initiate 
a lawsuit to obtain the CO. He asserted she should have received that CO immediately. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated that if the Board were to investigate the CO, they see the inherent bias on the 
document. He asserted the document stated “no medical detox” as if it were an exception and the 
City should have given the CO and held to the exception, but they did not. 
 
City Attorney Smith stated she understood Mr. Zucchini was passionate about the issue, and 
certainly when it comes before the City Commission, he would have every opportunity to make 
comment, but the matter had already been litigated. She asserted he was pointing fingers at 
people in the City for an issue that had already gone through the courts. 
 
Mr. Zucchini responded that it did not go through the court of public opinion, which was happening 
now. He asserted the story must be told. 
 
City Attorney Smith stated the City was trying to move forward, and this meeting had been a step 
in that direction, but Mr. Zucchini continues to bring in the past. 
 
Mr. Angier added that Mr. Zucchini did not have to explain, as the item had been rehashed. He 
noted it was late. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated if Mr. Angier did not have the endurance or patience to stay, he could leave. 
 
Mr. Angier left the dais at 11:04 p.m. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated there are a lot of people who do not know the history of what took place. He 
noted he had heard comments from the dais that it should not be in a residential neighborhood, 
but it was previously in the Code that a group care facility should be in a residential neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen responded that she had given her legitimate opinion. She stated it was 
medical services, and medical services could be taken to the umpteenth end, and then the City 
was screwed. 
 
Mr. Zucchini argued the building was built for medical services and it was signed off as being for 
medical services. 
 
Ms. Van Der Meulen stated she did not vote on it at that time. 
 



Page 20 of 20 
 

Mr. Zucchini responded that he was not disagreeing with Ms. Van Der Meulen’s opinion, but was 
stating that in the City’s Code, it said group care facilities should be in residential neighborhoods. 
 
City Attorney Smith stated that if they finalized this now, Mr. Zucchini could speak when the matter 
went before the City Commission. 
 
Mr. Zucchini asserted that he would have three (3) minutes and could not explain the issue in 
three (3) minutes. 
 
City Attorney Smith stated that she understood that, but Mr. Zucchini was testifying on something 
that was (inaudible – he spoke over her). 
 
Mr. Zucchini argued he was not testifying. 
 
City Attorney Smith suggested Mr. Teal could call Mr. Zucchini as a witness when the matter went 
before the City Commission in a Quasi-Judicial hearing. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated Lisa Martz had spoken on behalf of Dr. Daniel Amen, and he recognized Dr. 
Amen for his fascinating work on brain imaging for many years. He asserted this facility wanted 
to bring in treatment where no one else was willing to stand up and say yes, we will help veterans. 
We will help to cure PTSD. Mr. Zucchini expressed that he believed it to be a noble cause, and 
for people to come up with lame objections, they could not come back and say they support 
veterans. 
 
Mr. Zucchini stated in 2017, the Board also had to deal with Florida Statute changing where a 
group home could be. He stated that was totally different from group care, and for everyone’s 
information, a group home can be anywhere, including right next door to the most affluent 
community or in a condominium complex, because that was the Statute. Mr. Zucchini asserted 
this facility wanted to be in a residential neighborhood to help people to assimilate back into 
society. 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 11:09 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
         
Elizabeth Taschereau, Director of Development Services 



APPLICANTS PRESENTATION TO THE 
PLANNING AND ZONINIG BOARD MEETING 

ON JUNE 1, 2021 



Margate Cares for Heroes
City of Margate Planning and Zoning Board Meeting

June 1, 2021

1







2014

4

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



2014

5

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



2014

6

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FINDINGS FROM RESOLUTION NO. 15-010



2014

7

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FINDINGS FROM RESOLUTION NO. 15-010



2014

8

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FINDINGS FROM RESOLUTION NO. 15-010



2014

9

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FINDINGS FROM RESOLUTION NO. 15-010



2014

10

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



2014

11

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



2014

12

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY PERMITS 15-00001248 TO I-2 

HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CARE



2014

13

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY I-2 HOSPITAL/MEDICAL 

CARE



14



2014

15

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
CITY OF MARGATE FIRE DEPARTMENT ASSESSMENT AS 

NURSING HOME BUILDING $6,130.65/year



2014

16

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

October 12, 2020, DRC Meeting re Rezoning 
Request

July 21, 2020, Public Hearing, Reasonable 
Accommodation Request



2014

17

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
June 1, 2021 - Public Hearing on Rezoning 
Request, R-1 and R-3 to CF - 1



18



19



20



21



22

Response: This is the reason behind this 
application for rezoning to CF-1. The 
applicant will provide evidence of outside 
agency approval to the City as a condition of 
the rezoning request.



23

Response: The building is built to I-2 
standards. It has a fire alarm and fire 
sprinkler system, along with a CO2 
detector. See letter from James Philip 
Drago, R.A. Registered Architect AR 
009780 stating that a generator is not 
required.



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31

Response: Below is the positive finding from 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-010 regarding surface water 
management. Site conditions are identical today:



32

Response: The applicant agrees to extending the 
public sidewalk to the western limits of the site. All 
other minimum standards are met.



33

Response: Meets standards. Applicant agrees to pay 
all connection and/or impact fees based on the 
number of beds.



34



35



36



37



38



39



STAFF PRESENTATION TO THE 
PLANNING AND ZONINIG BOARD 

MEETING ON JUNE 1, 2021 



June 1, 2021
ID 2021-195 

Rezoning from R-1 and R-3 to CF-1

Property Location: 603 Melaleuca Drive

Planning & Zoning Meeting 



 Subject Property
 Rezoning
 City Process

AGENDA



LOCATION MAP



LOCATION MAP



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PHOTOS



PROPERTY SURVEY



PROPERTY SURVEY



MARGATE ZONING MAP



MARGATE ZONING MAP



R-1 ONE FAMILY-DWELLING DISTRICT 
PERMITTED USES
 Single-family dwelling
 Recreational buildings/facilities/playgrounds (City)
 Recreational/Social centers
 Church/synagogue/religious institution
 Water/Sewer plants and utility infrastructure
 Accessory uses
 Home occupation
 Community Residential Home, Type 1
 Recovery Residence



R-3 MULTIPLE DWELLING DISTRICT 
PERMITTED USES
 Single-family dwelling
 Two-family dwelling
 Multiple family dwelling (7-16 units per acre)
 Recreational buildings/facilities/playgrounds (City)
 Recreational/Social centers
 Church/synagogue/religious institution
 Water/Sewer plants and utility infrastructure
 Accessory uses
 Home occupation
 Community Residential Home, Type 1 or 2
 Recovery Residence



CF-1 COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
PERMITTED USES

Uses By Right
 House of worship and school on the same plot
 Hospitals, detoxification facilities, and long-term care 

facilities
 Municipal buildings, fire stations, playgrounds, etc.
 Accessory uses

Special Exception Uses
 Public or private elementary, middle, or high school
 Public or private postsecondary education facility 



CF-1 Uses    vs    I-2 Uses

CF-1 Uses By Right
 House of worship and school on 

the same plot
 Hospitals, detoxification 

facilities, and long-term care 
facilities

 Municipal buildings, fire 
stations, playgrounds, etc.

I-2 Uses (2014 FBC)
 Foster Care Facilities
 Detoxification Facilities
 Hospitals
 Nursing Homes
 Psychiatric hospitals



REZONING APPLICATION



REZONING APPLICATION



CF-1 Uses    vs    I-2 Uses

CF-1 Uses By Right
 House of worship and school on 

the same plot
 Hospitals, detoxification 

facilities, and long-term care 
facilities

 Municipal buildings, fire 
stations, playgrounds, etc.

I-2 Uses (2014 FBC)
 Foster Care Facilities
 Detoxification Facilities
 Hospitals
 Nursing Homes
 Psychiatric hospitals



REZONING PROCESS

 Chapter 31 of the Code of the City of Margate

• DRC → Planning and Zoning Board → City Commission



CHAPTER 31

 Sec. 31-34 Development review committee

• “The development review committee, as to all proposed plats, 
subdivision resurveys, land use plan amendments, and 
rezonings, shall make a statement to the planning and zoning 
board assessing the adequacy of the proposal as to all city 
ordinances.”



CHAPTER 31

 Sec. 31-36 Determinations required prior to a change in zoning

• “A change in zoning on platted land which need not be 
replatted prior to issuance of a building permit shall be 
permitted after a determination has been made by the city 
commission that services are available to serve the 
development permitted in the zoning district which is being 
petitioned. A determination that services are available shall be 
made when the city commission approves a report submitted 
by the development review committee which indicates the 
conditions contained in section 31-35 of this article have been 
met.”

https://library.municode.com/fl/margate/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH31PLSUOTLAUSRE_ARTIIIDERE_S31-35DEREPRAPDEPE


CHAPTER 31

 Sec. 31-35 Determinations required prior to approval of a 
development permit

• “A determination that adequate services will be available to 
serve the needs of the proposed development shall be made 
when the following conditions are met.”



CHAPTER 31

 Sec. 31-37 Development presumed to have maximum impact 
permitted; use of site plan to assess maximum impact

• “For the purpose of implementing sections 31-34, 31-35, 
and 31-36, a proposed development shall be presumed to have 
the maximum impact permitted under applicable land 
development regulations such as zoning regulations and the 
land use element of the Margate Comprehensive Plan.”

• “If a site plan is presented when a proposed plat, subdivision 
resurvey or rezoning application is submitted, it may be used 
as the basis to assess the maximum impact of the 
development.”

https://library.municode.com/fl/margate/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH31PLSUOTLAUSRE_ARTIIIDERE_S31-34DERECO
https://library.municode.com/fl/margate/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH31PLSUOTLAUSRE_ARTIIIDERE_S31-35DEREPRAPDEPE
https://library.municode.com/fl/margate/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH31PLSUOTLAUSRE_ARTIIIDERE_S31-36DEREPRCHZO


DRC – October 13, 2020

 DEES unable to make specific findings (surface water and traffic³)

 DSD found several nonconformities with Code and inconsistencies 
with the Comprehensive Plan

 FD required specific improvements

 Building Official requires building permit for current I-2 
requirements

 DRC recommended denial



STAFF RECOMMENDS DENIAL


	Margate Cares for Heroes 06 01 21 Presentation_applicant.pdf
	Margate Cares for Heroes
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014
	Slide Number 14
	2014
	2014
	2014
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39

	Staff Presentation_1.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



